
 
 

ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SCRUTINY BOARD 
Agenda 
 
 

Date Thursday 15th May 2025 
 

Time 10.00 am 
 

Venue Lees Suite, Civic Centre, Oldham, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires advice on any 
item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect his/her 
ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Alex Bougatef or 
Peter Thompson at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this agenda is Peter Thompson, email: 
peter.thompson@oldham.gov.uk    
 
3.  FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may 
record/film/photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and the 
press are not lawfully excluded.  Any member of the public who attends a 
meeting and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional 
Services Officer who will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 
 
Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual 
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private 
meeting is held. 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE ADULTS SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 
SCRUTINY BOARD 

 Councillors Adams, Hamblett, Hurley, J. Hussain, Ibrahim, Kouser, Malik, 
McLaren (Vice-Chair), Moores (Chair), Rustidge and Sharp 
 

 

Item No  

1   Apologies For Absence  

2   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

4   Call-in Procedure (Pages 3 - 4) 

Public Document Pack

mailto:peter.thompson@oldham.gov.uk


 
 

 The Scrutiny Board is asked to note the Call-in Procedure 

5   Future Commissioning Arrangements for Supported Living Services for People 
with Learning Disabilities, Complex Needs and/or Autism (Pages 5 - 14) 

 The Scrutiny Board is requested to note the Call-in request and to consider the 
recommendations, in the submitted report, which had been approved by Cabinet 
on 7th April 2025. The report was subsequently called-in by Councillors Hamblett 
and Kenyon. 
 
The Cabinet had been requested to consider a report that outlined future 
commissioning arrangements for the provision of Care and Support Services for 
people with Learning Disabilities, Complex Needs and/or Autism. 
 
The report considered by the Cabinet on 7th April 2025 and the minute relating to 
this item (no. 12) are attached. 



PROTOCOL FOR DEALING WITH CALLED-IN BUSINESS AT AN 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD MEETING 
 
The Chair of the Scrutiny Board will briefly outline the following procedure to 
the Scrutiny Board Members and others present at the meeting. 
 

1. The Calling-in Members will explain to the Committee the reasons why 
they have called-in the Cabinet’s decision. 

 
2. The Cabinet Member will explain to the Scrutiny Board the background 

to the decision that has been called-in. 
 

3. The Lead Director/report author or any relevant third party involved in 
the compilation of the report, will explain the reasons for the 
recommendation in the report. 
 

4. The Calling-in Members may ask questions of the Cabinet Member 
and/or the Lead Director/report author or any relevant third party 
involved in the compilation of the report. 
 

5. Members of the Scrutiny Board may ask questions of the Cabinet 
member and of the Lead Director/report author, or any relevant third 
party involved in the compilation of the report. 
 

6. Members of the Scrutiny Board may ask questions of the Calling-in 
Members. 
 

7. The Scrutiny Board will debate the issues. 
 

8. The Calling-in Members will have the opportunity to respond to any 
relevant points raised during the debate (if appropriate). 

 
9. The Cabinet Member and/or the Lead Director/report author or any 

relevant third party involved in the compilation of the report, will have 
the opportunity to respond to any relevant points raised during the 
debate (if appropriate). 
 

10. The Scrutiny Board will make its decision, and there are essentially two 
decisions which the Board can make: - 

a. to uphold the decision that has been called-in, which means the 
decision will take immediate effect. 

b. To refer the decision back to the decision-making body (Cabinet) to 
determine at its next available meeting, if necessary, with any 
recommendations which this Scrutiny Board considers to be 
appropriate. (If this is the case the Cabinet can uphold its original 
decision, or make a different decision, in light of the scrutiny Board’s 
consideration thereon. Any subsequent decision made by a Cabinet 
would be exempt from call-in). 

 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



 
 

Page 4



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Reason for Decision 
 
The Council’s contractual arrangements for the delivery of care and support services for adults with 
learning disabilities and/or autism ended in 2020.   
 
The Council has a statutory duty to deliver care and support services for adults with learning 
disabilities and/or autism based on assessed Care Act 2014 needs to support some of Oldham’s 
most vulnerable adults residing in supported living accommodation. 
 
To meet its obligations, the Council proposes to utilise the GM Framework for Supporting People to 
Live Well at Home, which is being tendered by Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council (RMBC) as 
the lead authority for the 10 GM authorities and will be available to the Council and other contracting 
authorities from its commencement. Tenders have been received and are being evaluated with 
STaR procurement advising RMBC. The estimated commencement date is 1 April 2025. The new 
contractual arrangements will replace the current GM Learning Disabilities and Autism Flexible 
Procurement System which expires on 31 March 2025. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Council entered into a Framework Agreement with six service providers in 2016 to deliver care 
and support services to eligible service users living in named properties (owned by third party 
landlords). The service providers were allocated to properties and all orders for services were 
directed to the relevant service provider attached to the relevant property. The Framework 
Agreements for the delivery of services for adults with learning disabilities and/or autism ended in 
2020.  
 

Report to CABINET  

 
Future commissioning arrangements for 
Care and Support Services for people with 
Learning Disabilities, Complex Needs 
and/or Autism. 
 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Barbara Brownridge, Lead Member for 
Health and Social Care  
 
Officer Contact: Jayne Ratcliffe, Director of Adults Social Services  
 
Report Author:  Fateha Khanom, Commissioning Manager, 
Working Age Adults, ASC Commissioning and Market  
Management  
 
07th April 2025 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 

  2 

Since then, any additional placements required have been made with the previously appointed 
service providers in respect of those service users residing in the properties listed in the Annex to 
this report, using the framework approach. 
 
In addition, individual placement arrangements have been made for service users requiring an out 
of borough placement where there is a limited market, where there was either a need to place out 
of borough for safety and best interest needs, or where there was not any appropriate provision in 
Borough. 
 
Where possible, the Council has been placing orders under the current GM Learning Disabilities and 
Autism Flexible Procurement System, but this flexible system will close on 31 March 2025. 
 
The Council has a statutory duty to deliver care and support services for adults with learning 
disabilities and/or autism based on assessed Care Act 2014 needs to support some of Oldham’s 
most vulnerable adults residing in supported living accommodation. Therefore, it is vital that a 
procurement compliant route to market is established to procure the services in a swift but fit for 
purpose manner for both in and out of the Oldham borough placements. 
 
To meet its statutory obligation to deliver a range of care and support services which meet assessed 
needs, the Council proposes to utilise the GM Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at 
Home, which is being tendered by RMBC and will be available to the Council and other contracting 
authorities from its commencement.  
 
Recommendations 
 

1. Approval is requested for Oldham Council to call-off any care and support (supported living) 
services it requires during the term of the GM Supporting People to Live Well at Home flexible 
framework arrangements  which are planned to  commence on 1 April 2025 in order to meet 
the assessed needs of service users.  
 

2. Approval is requested to carry out a mini procurement exercise (competition) under Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council’s flexible framework arrangements for Supporting People to 
Live Well at Home, in respect of in-borough care and support (supported living) services: 
(a) for existing residents in the properties listed in the Annex to this report; and 
(b) for any replacement service users which take occupation in the properties  

 
3. Approval is requested to carry out mini procurement competitions as and when required 

under the GM Supporting People to Live Well at Home flexible framework arrangements for 
the provision of care and support (supported living) services of any nature to new service 
users who: 
(a) are not resident in the properties listed in the Annex to this report, but 

are or will be resident in properties in or outside of the Oldham borough.  
 

4. Approval is requested to enter into Call-Off Contracts with the successful service providers 
referenced in recommendations 3 and 4 above who will be appointed from time to time by 
the Council under and in accordance with the GM Supporting People to Live Well at Home 
flexible framework arrangements. 

  

Page 6



 

  3 

 
Cabinet 7 April 2025 
  
1 Background 
 
1.1 The Council entered into a Framework Agreement with six service providers in 2016 to 

deliver care and support Services to eligible service users living in named properties (owned 
by third party landlords). The service providers were allocated to properties and all orders for 
services were directed to the relevant service provider attached to the relevant property. The 
Framework Agreements for the delivery of care and support services for adults with learning 
disabilities and/or autism ended in 2020.  

 
1.2 Since then, ad-hoc placements have been made with the previously appointed service 

providers in respect of those service users residing in the properties listed in the Annex to 
this report.  

 
1.3 In addition, ad hoc arrangements have been made in respect of service users requiring an 

out of borough placement or requiring specialist services where there is a limited market. 
 
1.4 Where possible, the Council has placed orders under the current GM Learning Disabilities   

and Autism Flexible Procurement System, but this flexible system will close down on 31 
March 2025 and this will be replaced with the GM Framework for Supporting People to Live 
Well at Home. 

 
1.5 The Council has a statutory duty to deliver care and support (supported living) services for 

adults with learning disabilities and/or autism based on assessed Care Act 2014 needs in 
order to support some of Oldham’s most vulnerable adults residing in supported living 
accommodation. Therefore, it is vital that a procurement compliant route to market is 
established in order to procure the required care and support services in a swift but fit for 
purpose manner for both in and out of the Oldham borough placements. 

 
1.6 To meet its statutory obligation to deliver a range of care and support services which meet 

assessed needs, the Council proposes to utilise the GM Framework for Supporting People 
to Live Well at Home, which is being tendered by Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council 
(RMBC) as the lead authority for the 10 GM authorities and will be available to the Council 
and other contracting authorities from its commencement.  

 
1.7 Submissions received in response to the invitation to tender issued by RMBC in respect of 

the GM Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home are currently being 
evaluated. Unless the procurement timetable is amended, it is anticipated that the GM 
Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home will commence on 1 April 2025 and 
will operate for an initial term of 4 years, with the option for RMBC to extend that term for 
two additional years, followed by another possible extension of a further two years. This 
ensures that the contractual arrangements can remain adaptable to changes in demand 
while providing stability in service provision over a longer period. 

 
2 Current Position 
 
2.1 In anticipation of the GM Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home, officers 

within the commissioning team are currently completing the Oldham service specification 
for the care and support services required by those service users who currently live in the 
properties detailed in the Annex to this report and any future residents of those properties. 
It is anticipated that six service providers will be needed, but this will be confirmed in the 
final draft of the service specification. 

 

Page 7



 

  4 

2.2 While the properties in which service users reside are not owned by the Council, efforts will 
be made to establish service level agreements with landlords to align property 
arrangements with service delivery. Further, obligations will be imposed on the service 
providers to work with the landlords. This alignment will create a cohesive and efficient 
framework for people living independently, benefitting both the service users and providers 
through clear agreements and operational stability. 

 
2.3 The mini competition for the initial call-off under the GM Framework for Supporting People 

to Live Well at Home will be designed by the commissioning team, in consultation with the 
Commercial Procurement Unit. The award and scoring criteria will be led by what is 
permitted under the call-off process detailed within the GM Framework for Supporting 
People to Live Well at Home.  

 
2.4 Any future call-off arrangements for the individual in-borough or out of borough placements 

will also be carried out in accordance with GM Framework for Supporting People to Live 
Well at Home. 

 
2.5 No procurement activity under the GM Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at 

Home would be pursued until after it has been confirmed the arrangements have officially 
commenced and all appointed service providers have executed an overarching agreement 
with RMBC. 

 
2.6 The GM Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home will provide a compliant 

and flexible framework for procuring high-quality care and support services through a 
streamlined call-off process. 

 
2.7 All Call-Off Contracts entered following the completion of a call-off process under the GM 

Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home will be largely in the form prescribed 
under the GM Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home. 

 
2.8 The estimated costs of commissioning the required services under GM Framework for 

Supporting People to Live Well at Home during its 4 + 2+ 2-year term are dealt with in the 
Finance implications. 

 
2.9 A further report will be presented to DMT following the local competition and to confirm the 

approved providers going forward, to ratify the local commissioning arrangements. 
 
3 Options/Alternatives 
 
3.1 Option 1: Maintain the existing ad hoc service provision arrangements 

 Details 
Maintain the existing ad hoc service provision arrangements with the current 
providers of the required services. 

 Risks 
o Viability Issue: This option is not viable as the contracts for these services 

expired in 20190. Continuing with the current providers without new 
commissioning arrangements would breach the Council’s Contract Procedure 
Rules, which incorporate the relevant legislative requirements. 

o Missed Opportunities: Failing to test the market would mean missing 
opportunities to ensure value for money and service quality improvements. 

o Insufficient Terms and Conditions: The purchase order terms and 
conditions may not meet the evolving needs of service users or reflect best 
practices. 

 
3.2 Option 2: Cease Delivery of Supported Living Services 

Page 8



 

  5 

 Details: 
Discontinue the provision of care and support services for adults with learning 
disabilities and/or autism. 

 Risks: 
o Statutory Duty: This option is not viable as these services are statutory under 

the Care Act, 2014 which requires the Council to meet the assessed needs of 
individuals. 

o Vulnerable Service Users: The absence of care and support services would 
leave vulnerable individuals without necessary support, forcing the Council to 
seek costly alternative placements or emergency solutions. 

o Reputational and Legal Risks: There is the potential for reputational damage 
and legal challenges for failing to meet statutory obligations. 

 
 
3.3 Option 3: Procure Services via the GM Supporting People to Live Well at Home FPS 

Agreement (Preferred Option) 
 Details: 

For the immediate in-borough requirements (for current service users resident in the 
in the properties listed in the Annex to this report and any new service users who 
move into the properties when accommodation becomes available), proceed with a 
mini competition under the GM Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at 
Home, procured by RMBC. For future in-borough and out of borough ad hoc 
arrangements, procure all requirements in accordance with the GM Framework for 
Supporting People to Live Well at Home. This option ensures a compliant and 
transparent process to secure high-quality care and support services through the GM 
Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home.  

 Risks: 
o TUPE – subject to the way in which the lots are designed for the immediate 

in-borough requirements for the properties listed in the Annex to this report 
and subject to which service providers are allocated to the lots, there could be 
(but will not necessarily be) a fragmented service; however, it is anticipated 
that staff will be required so even if there are TUPE implications, a contractual 
transfer of staff could be agreed. 
 

4 Preferred Option 
4.1 Option 3 – Procure Services via the GM Supporting People to Live Well at Home FPS 

Agreement (Preferred Option) 
 

This option aligns with statutory obligations, procurement regulations, and best practices 
for service delivery. This approach provides the most flexible, compliant, and transparent 
solution for securing high-quality services for Oldham’s most vulnerable residents. 

 
5  Consultation 

 
5.1        A comprehensive consultation exercise has been conducted to inform the design and 

delivery of care and support services in Oldham for adults with learning disabilities and/or 
autism based on assessed Care Act 2014 needs. The consultation aims to ensure that 
individuals with learning disabilities and/or autism: 

 
o Are fully included and integrated into the community. 
o Are treated with dignity and respect. 
o Have choice and control over their lives, enhancing their independence and 

promoting health and positive well-being. 
 

              Two key stakeholder groups have been engaged as part of this consultation: 

Page 9



 

  6 

o Adults with learning disabilities and/or autism, alongside their parents, families, and 
carers. 

o Providers of the care and support Services. 
 

Further consultation was undertaken by STAR procurement to help shape the GM 
Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home. 

 
 5.2    The principles outlined above guided the local Oldham approach to the consultation. 

Engagement visits were carried out with all six framework providers to explore their 
practices and gather examples of best practice. During these visits, service users were 
engaged with to capture a diverse range of perspectives. Structured questions were used 
to gather feedback, and the responses were analysed to identify recurring themes, 
strengths, and areas for improvement.  This engagement model ensures that service 
providers are well-equipped to create inclusive, supportive, and empowering environments 
for individuals with learning disabilities and/or autism.  

 
 5.3        A market engagement event with existing and potential providers was held in May 2024 to 

initiate consultation on the proposed commissioning framework. Additionally, current 
providers were invited to a focused session on Friday, 10th May 2024, to directly discuss 
commissioning intentions. This dialogue with providers will continue throughout the 
procurement process to ensure alignment with service user needs and the Council’s 
objectives. 

 
6 Financial Implications  
 
6.1 The proposal to procure services via the FPS Agreement is not expected to present any 

adverse cost implication to existing commissioned service provision. There is no intention 
to revise the current core and flex models of delivery, and the hourly rates will be agreed 
and set as part of the annual ASC market uplifts, subject to a separate report.   

 
 There may be opportunities to realise potential cost reductions from non-commissioned 

provision once framework providers are known and min-competitions are performed. 
 
 There are risks however, that specialist or out of borough settings could become more 

expensive if existing providers don’t form part of the framework, resulting in service users 
being placed in alternative more costly provision.  

 
             Andy Pearson, Accountant 
 
7 Legal Implications 
 
7.1 Rule 4 of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules governs the procurement processes 

which must be followed depending on the proposed contract value. 
 
7.2 Rule 4.1 allows for call-offs to be made under procurement compliant Framework 

Agreements which have been commissioned in accordance with the correct rules and 
legislation. 

 
7.3 In this matter, it is proposed that the care and support services for adults with learning 

disabilities and/or autism based on assessed Care Act 2014 needs which are or may be 
required over the coming years are, where possible, commissioned under the GM 
Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home, which is currently out to tender and 
is scheduled to commence on 1 April 2025. The Framework is being tendered by RMBC 
and is available to other contracting authorities (such as the Council) to use. The 
Commercial Procurement Unit is monitoring the tender procedure to ensure that a 

Page 10



 

  7 

procurement compliant arrangement is finalised by RMBC and that it will be lawful for the 
Council to place orders under the Framework. 

 
7.4 Once the GM Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home is in place and live, 

the Council must undertake all commissioning activity in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the Framework and the form of contract must be as governed by the GM 
Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home. 

 
7.5 Provided the Council complies with the GM Framework for Supporting People to Live Well 

at Home, the legal implications of delivering the recommendations in this report should be 
minimal. However, it isn’t possible to guarantee that any commissioning activity under the 
GM Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home will not be challenged; all the 
Council can do is mitigate against any risks by complying with prescribed processes and 
terms and conditions. 

 
7.6 If the Council were to be challenged by way of a judicial review claim, it should be noted 

that there are limited grounds for bringing such a claim; a decision made must be illegal (a 
decision-maker breaches a legal requirement, misdirects itself in law, exercises a power 
wrongly, or purports to exercise a power that it does not have, which is known as acting 
'ultra vires') or it must be irrational (i.e., if it "is so unreasonable that no reasonable authority 
could ever have come to it") or if it is procedurally improper (a failure to observe statutory 
procedures or natural justice) or it is made in breach of legitimate expectation (when a public 
body has failed to act in line with an expectation that it has created by its own statements 
or acts).   

 
7.7 Further, the claimant must have sufficient interest, or “standing” in the matter to which the 

judicial review relates (for example, a contractor who has not been given the opportunity to 
bid for the contracts). An application for permission to apply for judicial review in England 
must be made “promptly” and in any event not later than one month from the date when 
grounds for the application first arose (in procurement cases).    

 
7.8 One or more of six forms of final relief are available, and all are at the discretion of the court. 

Declarations and quashing orders are by far the most granted remedies in judicial review. 
It is rare for the other remedies to be granted.  

 
 Sarah Orrell – Commercial & Procurement Solicitor 
 
8           Procurement Implications 
 
8.1        Current arrangements are non-compliant and carry a risk to the organisation, so it is important 

that this is addressed as a matter of urgency. The quickest and safest route to market would 
be through the new GM framework, and this would be compliant with the Oldham Council 
CPRs. If we were required to go out and create our own framework, this would result in 
significant delays (9-12 months), and the FPS/DPS model is not available under the new 
regulations.  

 
             The GM framework was started under the PC2015 regulations so is governed by these. It 

should end in 2029 as per government guidance around the length of these contracts 
following the implementation of the PA23 regulations. At this time, we do not know which 
companies have been successful in their application to the new GM framework. If there is 
a change in supplier for any of the lots then we would expect staff in current services to 
TUPE across to a new provider, ensuring consistency of staffing and care for the service 
users, with minimal impact to them.  

 
              We do need to be aware that there may be a short delay from the framework going live to 

us being able to access it, or there could be some delays in the final few weeks causing a 

Page 11



 

  8 

short delay to the implementation of the framework and therefore our ability to access it. 
We will need to finalise the breakdown of the lots, and decisions as to whether these are by 
properties or by geography (and depending on this, what happens to any new properties 
that come online in Oldham boundaries), before we can go out with a mini-comp. 

  
James England – Procurement Manager 

 
9           Human Resources implications 
 
9.1       Should OPTION 3 be approved, there would be no HR implications as there are no people 

implications.  
 
10 Equality Impact, including implications for Children and Young People 
 
10.1  Yes – to follow  
 
11 Key Decision 
 
11.1 Yes 
 
12 Key Decision Reference 
 
12.1 This item has been included on the Forward Plan under reference HSC-01-25. 
 
13 Background Papers 
 
13.1 N/A 

 
14 Appendices  
 
14.1 None 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 12



7  FUTURE COMMISSIONING ARRANGEMENTS FOR   
SUPPORTED LIVING SERVICES FOR PEOPLE WITH   

LEARNING DISABILITIES, COMPLEX NEEDS AND/OR 
AUTISM 

 

The Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Adult Social Care/DASS which 
informed Members that the Council’s contractual arrangements for the delivery of care 
and support services for adults with learning disabilities and/or autism ended in 2020. 
The Council has a statutory duty to deliver care and support services for adults with 
learning disabilities and/or autism based on assessed Care Act 2014 needs to support 
some of Oldham’s most vulnerable adults residing in supported living accommodation. 
 
To meet its obligations, the Council proposes to utilise the Greater Manchester (M) 
Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home, which is being tendered by 
Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council (RMBC) as the lead authority for the 10 GM 
authorities and will be available to the Council and other contracting authorities from 
its commencement. Tenders have been received and are being evaluated with STaR 
procurement advising RMBC. The estimated commencement date is 1st April 2025. 
The new contractual arrangements will replace the current GM Learning Disabilities 
and Autism Flexible Procurement System which expires on 31st March 2025. 
 
The Council entered into a Framework Agreement with six service providers in 2016 
to deliver care and support services to eligible service users living in named properties 
(owned by third party landlords). The service providers were allocated to properties 
and all orders for services were directed to the relevant service provider attached to 
the relevant property. The Framework Agreements for the delivery of services for 
adults with learning disabilities and/or autism ended in 2020. Since then, any additional 
placements required have been made with the previously appointed service providers 
in respect of those service users residing in the properties listed in the Annex to this 
report, using the framework approach. 
 
In addition, individual placement arrangements have been made for service users 
requiring an out of borough placement where there is a limited market, where there 
was either a need to place out of borough for safety and best interest needs, or where 
there was not any appropriate provision in Borough. 
 
Where possible, the Council has been placing orders under the current GM Learning 
Disabilities and Autism Flexible Procurement System, but this flexible system closed 
on 31st March 2025. 
 
Therefore to meet its statutory obligation to deliver a range of care and support 
services which meet assessed needs, the Council proposes to utilise the GM 
Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home, which is being tendered by 
RMBC and will be available to the Council and other contracting authorities from its 
commencement.  
 
Options/Alternatives considered: 
Option 1: to maintain the existing ad hoc service provision arrangements with the 
current providers of the required services. 

Page 13



Option 2: Cease Delivery of Supported Living Services – to discontinue the provision 
of care and support services for adults with learning disabilities and/or autism. 
Option 3: To procure Services via the GM Supporting People to Live Well at Home 
FPS Agreement (Preferred Option) - for the immediate in-borough requirements (for 
current service users resident in the in the properties listed in the Annex to this report 
and any new service users who move into the properties when accommodation 
becomes available), proceed with a mini competition under the GM Framework for 
Supporting People to Live Well at Home, procured by RMBC. For future in-borough 
and out of borough ad hoc arrangements, procure all requirements in accordance with 
the GM Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home. This option ensures 
a compliant and transparent process to secure high-quality care and support services 
through the GM Framework for Supporting People to Live Well at Home.  
Option 3 was the preferred Option. 
 
Resolved: 

1. The Cabinet grants approval for Oldham Council to call-off any care and 
support (supported living) services it requires during the term of the GM 
Supporting People to Live Well at Home flexible framework arrangements  
which are planned to  commence on 1 April 2025 in order to meet the assessed 
needs of service users.  

2. The Cabinet grants approval to carry out a mini procurement exercise 
(competition) under Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council’s flexible 
framework arrangements for Supporting People to Live Well at Home, in 
respect of in-borough care and support (supported living) services: 
(a) for existing residents in the properties listed in the Annex to this report; and 
(b) for any replacement service users which take occupation in the properties  

3. The Cabinet grants approval to carry out mini procurement competitions as and 
when required under the GM Supporting People to Live Well at Home flexible 
framework arrangements for the provision of care and support (supported 
living) services of any nature to new service users who: are not resident in the 
properties listed in the Annex to this report, but 

are or will be resident in properties in or outside of the Oldham borough.  
4. The Cabinet grants approval, if requested, to enter into Call-Off Contracts with 

the successful service providers referenced in recommendations 3 and 4 above 
who will be appointed from time to time by the Council under and in accordance 
with the GM Supporting People to Live Well at Home flexible framework 
arrangements. 

 

Page 14


	Agenda
	4 Call-in Procedure
	5 Future Commissioning Arrangements for Supported Living Services for People with Learning Disabilities, Complex Needs and/or Autism
	copy of cabinet minute 7-4-25  (no. 7)


